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County of Alameda, General Services Agency – Purchasing

RFP No. 900977, Addendum No. 2

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS
to

RFP No. 901652
for

AB109 Direct Services: Career Technical Education
Summary of Q&A Submitted

Networking/Bidders Conference held on March 26, 2018
	This County of Alameda, General Services Agency (GSA), RFP Questions & Answers (Q&A) has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This Q&A will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at http://www.acgov.org/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/ContractOpportunities.jsp.


Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

The following Sections have been modified to read as shown below.  Changes made to the original RFP document are in bold print and highlighted, and deletions made have a strike through.

Responses to Written Questions

Q1) Are there any page limit restrictions on bid responses?
A1) All page limitations are noted in the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet.
Q2) What is the expected number of clients to be served?
A2) Because programs can vary from vendor to vendor, the County is asking Bidders to provide the number of clients expected to be served (see the Budget Form Template found on page 8 of the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet).  Bidders will need to explain and justify their Budget (including Cost per Participant), and they will be evaluated accordingly.
Q3) Does Alameda County have historical data on the number of clients served in the past in a given year?
A3) Page 8 of the RFP, Section B (SCOPE and BACKGROUND) does include some numbers related historical data, including the amount of clients that were in the target population for Fiscal Year 2015.  However, the County cannot provide additional information specific to referrals because there is no guarantee what those numbers would be on an annual basis.
Q4) Can Bidder include certifications and certificates that require more than one year to obtain (e.g., if a standard program is two years long)?
A4) No.  The County intends to award one-year contracts for CTE and/or Employment Training programs.  All proposed programs will be subject to contract negotiations.  
Q5) Does this program cover both the adult and juvenile side?
A5) As stated on page 4 of the RFP, Section A (INTENT), Item 3 (Target Population):
Contractors shall serve adult realigned clients, which is comprised of men and women, 18 years of age and older that are supervised under Post-Release Community Supervision (PRCS), and individuals charged and/or resolved with an 1170(h)-eligible offense on mandatory supervision. 

Q6) Will the County consider programs and occupations that span multiple sectors (e.g., hazardous material handling could be environmental or manufacturing)?
A6) Yes.  The County understands that some CTE and/or Employment Training programs may span multiple sectors.  

In their bid responses and if applicable, Bidders must clearly distinguish how their requested funding is being allocated amongst multiple proposed sectors.  If there are occupations that can span different sectors, Bidders are expected to identify in their bid response which multiple sectors that occupation spans. 
Q7) Is the County allowing OSHA training, specifically OSHA 10 since it does not have to be renewed?
A7) The County is not putting any limitations on sectors or occupational needs as long as the Bidder can clearly demonstrate their program leads to an industry recognized, non-degree certification/credential, license, and/or education certificate in a high skill, high wage, or high demand occupation.
Q8) Are two employment letters required for each occupation sector?
A8) In the RFP, the County is asking Bidders to submit a Program Narrative, which includes Organizational Capacity.  As indicated on page 12 of the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, Item 3.b.(2), Bidders must:
Describe active partnerships with local employers in a variety of high skill, high wage or high demand employment sectors that are willing and able to hire individuals with criminal backgrounds upon completion of the program and do not require a Driver’s License, and are accessible by public transit options. Demonstrate willingness and ability of these employing partners to hire individuals in the target population through letters of commitment, support, or other partnership agreements. 

The County is asking for letters of commitment/support, or other partnership agreements, that demonstrate the Bidders active partnerships with each local employer willing to hire individuals for each occupation per sector proposed by the Bidder.

In addition, as indicted on page 16 of the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, Bidders are to provide three references as follows: 
1. One reference for an organization that the Bidder has or had a contract with to provide Career Technical Education (CTE) and Employment Training services; and

2. Two references that demonstrate active partnerships with local employers in proposed employment sectors.  Additionally, these two references must include the total number of placements with each referenced employer, the average length of employment for placements, and the average starting wage for placements.

The two references demonstrating active partnerships with local employers is a separate requirement from the letters of commitment/support.  Essentially, Bidders should choose two of the employers for which letters of commitment/support (or other partnership agreements) were provided and indicate them as references on the provided Reference Template.
Q9) Are Bidders restricted to the employment sectors found on pages 9-10 of the RFP?  For example, a substance abuse counseling program is more closely associated with the human services or social services sectors, but in the RFP, the closest sector would be Healthcare.
A9) Bidders are not restricted to the employment sectors found in the RFP.  The County wants Bidders to have the discretion to bid in the employment sector of its choice and not be limited to the sectors found in the RFP.  In the example given, the Bidder can indicate in their Signed Letter of Introduction that their proposed program falls under Social Services.  

Please note that Bidders will be ranked against other programs in sectors that are the same or similar.  Ultimately, the County will decide if a new employment sector named by a Bidder is the same or similar to any other sector.
Q10) Are Bidders required to be an Alameda County certified Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) in order to bid on this RFP?
A10) This RFP does have a SLEB participation requirement.  This means that the lead/prime Bidder must either: (1) be a SLEB that is certified by Alameda County, or (2) subcontract at least 20% of the bid/contract value to one or more Alameda County certified SLEBs.
There are some entities that are exempt from meeting the SLEB (e.g., certain non-profit CBOs, public schools, government agencies).  A complete description of the SLEB program and its requirements, including a complete list of exempt entities, can be found on the County’s website at:  https://www.acgov.org/auditor/sleb/overview.htm
Q11) Given that there are multiple industries, is there a preference or expectation on the number of contracts to be awarded? Is there a preference to see one industry over another or a cluster of industries?
A11) There is no preference or expectation in regards to the number of awards, nor is there any inherent preference for one sector over another.  All bid responses will be score and ranked according to the specifications in the RFP.  Probation, however, is looking for high wage, high skill, and high demand employment sectors, which specifically do not have limitations that a criminal record or anything of that nature will be a barrier to employment.  That is an emphasis of the evaluation and awarding process.  The County is looking at the job opportunities in each sector, the wage earning potential in each sector, and the market trends around employment in each sector that will ensure clients have access to jobs with the highest earning potential.
Q12) Will space for the program be provided by Alameda County or within the Alameda County Probation Department (ACPD)? Does the Bidder or its SLEB need to supply the training location?
A12) Space will not be provided by the County.  The Bidder must provide program space, and should indicate the location of their CTE and/or Employment Training program in their bid response.
Q13) How will clients get to the training location if it is not onsite within Alameda County or ACPD?
A13) A part of the evaluation criteria is the program’s general accessibility, including access to public transportation.  As part of their bid response, Bidder will need to propose how clients will access training. For additional information on this requirement, please see:
· Page 13 of the RFP, Section D (Program Framework Requirements), Item 2 (Geographic Access); and

· Page 30 of the RFP, Section J, Evaluation Criteria Table, Item E (Geographic Access)
Q14) What does “certified” instructor mean?  If courses are certified by Skills USA, GAERF and PrintED, is there another process within the County to certify as well?
A14) Instructors of the CTE and/or Employment Training program should be trained and/or certified in the skills they are teaching. Additionally, Contractors will participate in any Probation-sponsored trainings that are required.  

Q15) Is there a general “life skills” program for the clients or is each CTE course expected to have “life skills” built within the course?  “Life Skills” include areas such as how to interview, résumé and portfolio development, how to dress, timeliness, and personal/communicative skills required in the workplace. 
A15) Some referrals may have been provided with life skills training, but it is not a guarantee. Bidders should detail how they will work to reduce any and all barriers that might interfere with a client’s ability to be successful.
Also, please note the following requirement found on page 19 of the RFP, Section F (Specific Requirements), Item 1.e.(4):

As necessary, Contractor shall provide financial assistance for work incidentals such as work attire, tools, and transportation to aid the participant in successful job placement and retention. 

Q16) Does Alameda have any job placement ability and partnerships already established, or is that done solely by the supplier?
A16) Job placement and developing those relationship is the sole responsibility of the awarded Bidder.
Q17) What is the profile of the typical client (e.g., length of service, type of infraction, etc.)?
A17) The only profile of the target population that the County is providing can be found on page 8 of the RFP (second and third paragraphs).
Q18) If a program has national references and other references in the state of California, but none locally, will that suffice for the references or will that disqualify a program?
A18) Requirements for references can be found on page 16 of the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, and are as follows: 

1. One reference for an organization that the Bidder has or had a contract with to provide Career Technical Education (CTE) and Employment Training services; and

2. Two references that demonstrate active partnerships with local employers in proposed employment sectors.  Additionally, these two references must include the total number of placements with each referenced employer, the average length of employment for placements, and the average starting wage for placements.

Bidders must provide references that meet the requirements above.  If a Bidder cannot meet a requirement, an exception can be listed on the Exceptions, Clarifications, Amendments page found on 19 of the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet.  As noted, however:  The County is under no obligation to accept any exceptions, clarifications, and amendments and such exceptions, clarifications, and amendments may be a basis for bid disqualification.
Q19) If a Bidder is licensed by the State of California, but does not carry a local business license but has a local presence in Alameda.  Is this acceptable?
A19) Page 12 of the RFP, Section C (Bidder Minimum Qualifications), Item 2, states:
2.
Bidder shall be a local vendor, based in Alameda County.  All and any parties of any bidding consortium must also meet this requirement.  An Alameda County vendor is a firm or dealer:

a. With fixed offices and having a street address within the County for at least six (6) months prior to the issue date of this RFP; and 

b. Which holds a valid business license issued by the County or a city within the County.

The County is requesting that the providers be local to Alameda County because services requested under this RFP are to be provided to Alameda County clients who need to be able to access local resources, particularly those with transportation challenges.  

Bidders must meet all minimum qualifications as stated in the RFP.
Q20) If a vendor partners with a SLEB that is certified by Alameda County, is it acceptable for them to be a prime or subcontractor?
A20) The County cannot advise vendors on how to bid, or how to partner/subcontract in order to respond to a bid.  As indicated on page 11 of the RFP, Section C (Bidder Minimum Qualifications), Item 1:

A Bidder may be a single vendor that provides services, or a consortium/coalition of vendors working collaboratively to provide services.  Collaborating vendors must clearly identify and name a single, lead prime Bidder that will submit on behalf of the collaboration, and also clearly identify and name all partnering vendors within the collaboration.  
It is important to note that if bidding a collaborative, the lead prime Bidder must meet the Bidder Minimum Qualification as indicated in the RFP.
Q21) If a vendor is a Round 2 Community Capacity Fund recipient, scheduled to complete prior to August 2019 as stated in the contract, will there be additional implementation funds that Round 2 recipients may apply for?  Or can vendors apply knowing staff training and strategic plans will be completed by August or September 2018?
A21) This is a separate RFP process unrelated to the Community Capacity Fund. All eligible vendors are welcome to bid, but there will be no connection to the Community Capacity Fund or additional implementation funds related to this procurement. 

Q22) Can Bidders collaborate with other vendors/organizations on a bid as well as bid solely for this same RFP in order to implement culturally and gender specific CTE programs?
A22) A vendor can submit a bid as prime, while also being named as a subcontractor or collaborating partners in any other bid or multiple bids.  However, a vendor cannot submit as a prime Bidder by itself, and the also submit another bid response as the lead prime Bidder of a collaboration. 

Q23) There may be client referrals that have committed sexually related crimes.  If a Bidder also serves youth and young people, are there restrictions or qualifiers that need to be considered?
A23) The Bidder will need to detail how they will be able to effectively serve the target population and establish any eligibility criteria that will need to be met.
Q24) Would a bidder be able to work exclusively with women, and is there an opportunity to pre-screen and train pre-released participants?
A24) Alameda County cannot guarantee referrals of any nature, due to the changing nature of the population. The Bidder should detail how they will serve the target population as detailed in page 4 of the RFP, Section A (Intent), Item 3:
Target Population

Contractors shall serve adult realigned clients, which is comprised of men and women, 18 years of age and older that are supervised under Post-Release Community Supervision (PRCS), and individuals charged and/or resolved with an 1170(h)-eligible offense on mandatory supervision. 

Q25) Page 8 of RFP, Section B (Scope and BACKGROUND), Item 2.a., states:
Certification/Credential:  A credential awarded by a certification body based on an individual demonstrating through an examination process that he or she has acquired the designated knowledge, skills, and abilities to perform a specific job. Certification is a time-limited credential that is renewed through a recertification process. 

Can the County please clarify?  Are credential and/or certification that never expire allowed?
A25) Yes, non-expiring certificates and/or credentials are allowed as long as the certification and/or credential is industry recognized and the Bidder can demonstrate that it leads to a job in one of the proposed areas.
Q26) Page 17 of RFP, Section F (Specific Requirements), Item 1.a.(1) states:

The training provides a Certification/Credential, License, and/or Educational Certificate that establishes a clear pathway to viable employment in a high skill, high wage, or high demand occupation.
Are you looking for specific occupations in each high demand sector? For example Training ABC leads to Occupation XYZ in High Demand Sector JKL?
A26) The County does not have any specific occupations in mind.  Rather, bid responses will be evaluated, in part, on how well they demonstrate active partnerships with local employers that will hire clients that complete their program and have no barrier to employment for the target clients.  In terms of categorizing funding, the County is requesting that Bidders identify the employment sector their program falls into.  What occupations the credential/certification is specifically for within that sector may vary. For example, if your sector is Information Technology (IT), occupations might include programming, IT support help desk, etc.
Q27) Page 17 of RFP, Section F (Specific Requirements), Item 1.a.(7) states:
The proposed training is responsive to current labor market and employment trends and ensures that job prospects and placements are in competitive employment sectors that will result in long-term career pathways and regularly increasing wages.
What is considered “achievable hours”?
A27) Bidders must justify through their program narrative why the number of hours required to complete the program is “achievable.”
Q28) Page 18 of RFP, Section F (Specific Requirements), Item 1.b.(3) states:
Based on the needs identified in the Career Pathway Plan, Contractor will provide or partner with other community providers essential barrier removal support, working collaboratively across systems to address education, housing, transportation and other critical needs that lead to sustainable employment and long term  job retention.
Are there partnerships already formed within the County that Bidders can engage in support of the additional needs of the learner?
A28) The Contractor will be connected with the County’s other AB109 providers for some services; but it is expected that the Bidder will provide information about local partnerships across systems that will address critical needs and reduce barriers. 

Q29) Page 18 of RFP, Section F (Specific Requirements), Item 1.c.(1) states:
Contractor shall offer clients opportunities to receive incentives or benefits for productive program participation and in an effort to reduce barriers to program participation. Incentives may be monetary and are reimbursable for the amount incurred to provide incentivized performance opportunities; reimbursements shall not exceed the actual cost incurred.
Can an example of what this means be provided?
A29) An incentivized performance opportunity could be stipends, monetary incentives, etc.
Q30) Regarding pages 7-8 of the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet (Budget Form & Budget Narrative):  If Bidders are pre-paid for the number of clients served, how will indirect cost be assessed? And if an organization has to hire staff, can that cost be spread out depending on how many clients are served?
A30) Indirect cost will be assessed at up to a 10% rate.  That will be outside of the cost per participant.  The County recognizes that indirect costs are a flat-rate being charged to the grant. Indirect costs will be divided over the life of the contract evenly. Stipends and performance incentives will be reimbursed as they are paid out, based on the amount paid out to clients up to the budgeted amount.  Bidders are asked to assess that amount as part of the per participant cost.  Page 8 of the Exhibit A - Bid Response Packet has a Budget Form Template to assist bidders in breaking down cost.  In terms of the budget, the County recognizes that there are up-front costs; all budget costs and payments will be subject to contract negotiations.  
Q31) Page 13 of the RFP, Section D (Program Framework Requirements), Item 4, states:

Representation of the Formerly Incarcerated on Staff:  Formerly incarcerated individuals are known to be highly effective care providers, especially in the area of peer-to-peer mentoring.  They serve as role models, provide shared perspective, and demonstrate to clients that education and employment are attainable goals as well as steps toward a stable lifestyle.  Contractor shall demonstrate the incorporation of the formerly incarcerated into their staffing for this project, whether already hired, or expected to be hired upon contract award.  

And on page 21 of the RFP, Section G (Deliverables), Item 1, states:

This will be a performance based contract with measurements and standards.  The performance measures focus on whether clients are better off as a result of the services provided, and also look at the quality and efficiency of the services provided.  

And on page 38 of the RFP, Section R (Invoicing), Item 1, states:

Contractor shall invoice the requesting department, unless otherwise advised, upon satisfactory performance of services on a cost-per-client served basis, based on a set of performance measures/benchmarks (e.g., program enrollment, program activity, program completion, etc.) that will be determined as part of contract negotiations, for an unduplicated number of clients.  Stipends and performance incentives will be paid by reimbursement on a per-client basis
If an awarded Bidder indicated in its proposal that it would hire staff to represent the formerly incarcerated, will funds be made available in order to hire that staff member in order to start the program?  Or are funds only disbursed by achieving performance measures/benchmarks?
A31) While this is a performance-based contract, the County intends to work with intended awardees during contract negotiations in order to address these types of needs.
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